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MARGARET CARSWELL,
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V.
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,

CALIFORNIA RECONVEYANCE COMPLAINT; MEMORANDUM OF
COMPANY and DOES 1 - 150 POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
Defendants. REQUEST FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE

HEREWITH]

CRTRM: 10

TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on November 15, 2010 at 8:30 p.m., or as soon
thereafter as the matter may be heard in Courtroom “10” of the above-entitled court,

defendant JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("JPMorgan"), an acquirer of certain assets and
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liabilities of Washington Mutual Bank ("WaMu") from the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation ("FDIC") acting as receiver and California Reconveyance Company
("CRC") (collectively refrenced hereinafter as ("Defendants") will move the Court to
dismiss the action pursuant to Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6) on the grounds
that all seven of the claims of plaintiff Margaret Carswell (“Plaintiff”) fails to state a
claim upon which relief can be granted. Specifically, Defendants will move the Court as
follows:

1. Plaintiff's first claim for “Wrongful Foreclosure” fails to state facts sufficient to
constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b)(6);

2. Plaintiff's second claim for “Violation of Civil Code § 2923.5" fails to state facts
sufficient to constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 12(b)(6);

3. Plaintiff's third claim for “Unjust Enrichment" fails to state facts sufficient to
constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).

4. Plaintiff's fourth claim for “RESPA Violations and TILA" fails to state facts
sufficient to constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 12(b) (6).

5. Plaintiff's fifth claim for “No Contract" fails to state facts sufficient to constitute a
claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).

6. Plaintiff's sixth claim for “Fraud and Concealment" fails to state facts sufficient to
constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).

7. Plaintiff's seventh claim for “Quiet Title" fails to state facts sufficient to constitute |
a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).

8. Plaintiff's eighth claim for “Declaratory and Injunctive Relief" fails to state facts
sufficient to constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 12(b) (6).

9. Plaintiff's ninth claim for “Slander of Title" fails to state facts sufficient to
constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).
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10.Plaintiff's tenth claim for “Intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress" fails to
state facts sufficient to constitute a claim for relief pursuant to Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 12(b) (6).
The motion will be based on this Notice of Motion, the Memorandum of Points
and Authorities, Request for Judicial Notice and the pleadings and papers filed in this -
action. This motion is made following the conference of counsel pursuant to L.R. 7-3

which took place on October 27, 2010.

DATED: October 27,2010 ADORNO YOSS ALVARADO & SMITH
_ A Professional Corporation

By: _ /s/ Michael B. Tannatt

THEODORE E. BACON

AMY L. MORSE

MICHAEL B. TANNATT

Attorney for Defendant

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A, an
acquirer of certain assets and liabilities of
Washington Mutual Bank from the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation acting as
receiver and CALIFORNIA
RECONVEYANCE COMPANY
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Defendants respectfully submit the following Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in support of their Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's First Amended Complaint
("FAC").
I. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Plaintiff is in default on a loan that she obtained on or about December 28, 2006
from Washngton Mutual Bank ("WaMu") ("Subject Loan"), secured by real property
located at 845 Sea Ranch Drive, Santa Barbara, California APN 047-103-04-00 ("Subject

Property"). In regard to these facts, Plaintiff has now brought ten claims' for Failure to

Contract, Unjust Enrichment, Violations of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act
("RESPA") and Truth In Lending (TILA) Violations, No Contract, Fraud and
Concealment, Quiet Title, and Declaratory Relief and Injuntive Relief, Slander of Title,
and Iﬁtentional Infliction of Emotional Distress. Defendants move to dismiss the ten
claims on the ground that these claims are not supported by sufficient facts to state a
clam against Defendants. Like the former Complaint, the entire FAC consists of nothing
but boilerplate conclusions of law and facts. Because there are insufficient allegations of
any wrongdoing against JPMorgan or CRC, JPMorgan and CRC request the Court to
grant their Motion To Dismiss.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Stated below are facts relevant to this motion which are either alleged in the

Complaint or set forth in matters df which the Court is requested to take judicial notice:
On or about December 28, 2006, Plaintiff obtained the Subject Loan,which is for the
principal amount of $2,500,000.00 from WaMu secured by the Subject Property. See
Complaint, 99 3, 8 and 12. Plaintiff signed the Promissory Note and Deed of Trust
("DOT"). See Complaint, 99 and Declaration of Margaret Carswell ("Carswell
Delaration"), 4 3, filed with the Court on July 14, 2010 and Exhibit "1" to the FAC, the

' The original Complaint had a modest seven causes of action.
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Adjustable Rate Note. The Carswell Declaration is attached as Exhibit "1" to the Request
for Judicial Notice ("RIN"), filed concurrently herewith. Plaintiff received the amount of
$2,500,000.00 and the deed of trust ("DOT") was recorded on December 28, 2006. See
original Compliant, q 12 and Carswell Declaration, ¥ 15. |
On September 25, 2008, the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") directed the

FDIC to be the receiver of WaMu ("OTS Order"). A copy of the OTS Order is attached
as Exhibit "2" to the Request for Judicial Notice ("RIN"), filed concurrently herewith.

On September 25, 2008, JPMorgan acquired certain assets and liabilities of
WaMu from the FDIC acting as receiver, pursuant to the Purchase and Assumption
Agreement (“P & A Agreement”) between the FDIC and JPMorgan dated September
25,2008. A copy ofthe P & A Agreement is attached as Exhibit "3" to the RIN.

As successor in interest to WaMu, JPMorgan had recorded an Assignment of Deed
of Trust on September 2, 2009, which transferred all beneficial interest under the deed of
trust to Bank of America, N.A., as successor by merger to "LaSalle Bank NA as trustee
for WaMu Mortgage Pass-Through Certificate Series 2007-)A1 Trust". A copy of the
Assignment is attached as Exhibit "2" to the FAC.

Until December, 2009, Plaintiff declares that she made regular payments on the
Subject Loan, but on or about this date, Plaintiff decided to stop making payments when
"the research that [she] had begun two months earlier started to reveal non-disclosed
securitization of [her] mortgage and many irregularities from usual mortgage
procedure." Carswell Declaration, ¥ 10.

On April 1, 2010, a Notice of Default an Election To Sell ("NOD") was recorded.

FAC, 9 13 Exhibit "2" to the FAC.

On July 1, 2010, a Notice of Trustee's Sale (NOTS") was recorded, notifying that
that trustee's sale was set for July 22. 2010. Complaint, 9 15 and Exhibit "6" to the FAC.
III. THE STANDARD FOR A MOTION TO DISMISS

A motion to dismiss under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure, Rule 12(b) (6) may be

brought when a plaintiff fails to state a claim upon which relief can be granted. The

2
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federal rules require that a complaint include a "short and plain statement" showing
plaintiff is entitled to relief. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure, Rule 8(a) (2). Yet, only
plausible claims for relief will survive a motion to dismiss. Ashcroft v. Igbal, 77 U.S.
4387, 129 S. Ct. 1937, 1950 (2009) ("Igbal"). A claim is plausible if its factual content
"allows the court to draw the reasonable inference that the defendant is liable for the
misconduct alleged." /d. at 1949. Accordingly, the complaint must "raise a right to relief
above the speculative level." Bell Atlantic Corporation. v. Twombly, 555 U.S. 544, 555,
127 S. Ct. 1955 (2007) ("Bell Atlantic Corporation.") A plaintiff does not have to
provide detailed facts, but the pleading must "include more than an unadorned, the
defendant-unlawfully-harmed-me accusation." Igbal, 129 S. Ct. at 1950. General
allegations or simply tracking statutory language is therefore insufficient to properly raise
a claim for relief. Bell Atlantic Corporation, 127 S. Ct. at 1959, (“Factual allegations
must be enough to raise a right to relief above the speculative level on the assumption
that all of the complaint’s allegations are true.”)
IV. JPMORGAN HAS NO LIABILITY FOR ACTIONS TAKEN BY WAMU IN
REGARD TO THE SUBJECT LOAN PRIOR TO SEPTEMBER 25, 2008

JPMorgan is not a successor of WaMu with respect to any alleged liability for

WaMu's purported acts related to the Subject Loan prior to JPMorgan's entering into
the P & A Agreement with the FDIC on September 25, 2008.

As established by documents of which this Court is asked to take judicial notice,
on September 25, 2008, the Office of Thrift Supervision determined that WaMu had
failed, took over the bank, and appointed the FDIC as receiver for the purpose of
liquidating WaMu pursuant to section 5(d)(2) of the Home Owners' Loan Act, 12 U.S.C.
§1464(d)(2) and section 11(c)(6)(B) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, 12 U.S.C.
§1821(c)(6)(B). (See RIN, where the OTS Order is attached as Exhibit "2".)

When the FDIC is appointed as receiver, it succeeds to "all rights, titles, powers

‘|land privileges of" the failed institution, and may "take over the assets of and operate”

the failed institution with all of the powers thereof. 12 U.S.C. §§ 1821(d)(2)(A)(1),

3
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1821(d)(2)(B)(1). One of the policies behind the creation of the FDIC is to promote the
stability of and confidence in the banking system. Gunter v. Hutcheson, 674 F.2d 862,
865, 870 (11th Cir. 1982), overruled on other grounds, Langley v. F.D.I.C., 484 U.S.
86 (1987) ("Gunter"). Thus, Congress has granted the FDIC the power to act as a
receiver, along with broad discretion to transfer, or retain, any liabilities of a defaulting
institution. The FDIC-Receiver's powers under the Financial Institutions Reform,
Recovery and Enforcement Act ("FIRREA") include the power to transfer assets and
liabilities of the failed institution through purchase and assumption agreements. See id.
§ 182(d)2)G)().

Also on September 25, 2008, the bulk of WaMu's assets were transferred to
JPMorgan pursuant to a P &A Agreement. (See RIN, Exhibit. "3".) To avoid the
significant problems with liquidation, the FDIC typically employs a “purchase and
assumption” transaction in which it arranges for another bank to purchase the failed
bank and reopen it without interrupting banking operations and with no loss to the
depositors. A purchase and assumption involves three entities: the receiver of the
failed bank, the purchasing bank, and the FDIC as insurer. Gunter, 674 F.2d at 865.
In most cases, the FDIC is appointed receiver by the appropriate banking authority
and acts both as receiver and as insurer. Gunter, 674 F.2d at 865 (citing F.D.1.C. v.
Ashley, 585 F.2d 157, 160 (6th Cir. 1978); 12 U.S.C. § 1821(c), (e)). The FDIC then
solicits bids from other banks for the purchase of the failed bank and assumption of its
liabilities. Gunter, supra, 674 F.2d at 865.

A purchase and assumption usually must be consummated with great speed,
often overnight, in order to preserve the going concern value of the failed bank and
avoid an interruption in banking services. Gunter, supra, 674 F.2d at 865.

Because the time constraints often prohibit a purchasing bank from fully evaluating
its risks, as well as to make a purchase and assumption an attractive business deal,
the purchase and assumption agreement generally provides that the purchasing
bank need purchase only those assets which are of the highest banking quality. /d.

4
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In addition, the FDIC and the acquiring bank can negotiate so that the FDIC retains
certain liabilities for itself rather than pass those liabilities on to the acquiring
institution. See id. By retaining these liabilities, the FDIC is able to attract a
purchaser, and the acquiring institution is then shielded from liability for claims of
an unknown magnitude.

Thus courts enforce FDIC purchase and assumption agreements that shield the
acquiring institution from liability retained by the FDIC. See West Park Assocs. v.
Butterfield Sav. & Loan Ass 'n., 60 F.3d 1452 (9th Cir. 1995) and Payne v. Security Savings
& Loan Association, 924 F.2d 109, 111 (7th Cir. 1991) (“absent an express transfer of
liability . . . and an express assumption of liability by [the transferee institution], FIRREA
directs that the [receiver] is the proper successor to the liability at issue here”).

Article 2.5 of the P & A Agreement expressly provides that JPMorgan did not
assume the potential liabilities of any kind associated with claims of borrowers arising
out of any lending or loan purchase activities of Washington Mutual. (Id.) That
Article provides:

2.5 Borrower Claims. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in
this Agreement, any liability associated with borrower claims for
payment of or liability to any borrower for monetary relief, or that
provide for any other form of relief to any borrower, whether or not
such liability is reduced to judgment, liquidated or unliquidated, fixed or
contingent, matured or unmatured, disputed or undisputed, legal or
equitable, judicial or extra-judicial, secured or unsecured, whether
asserted affirmatively or defensively, related in any way to any loan or
commitment to lend made by the Failed Bank prior to failure, or to any
loan made by a third party in connection with a loan which is or was held
by the Failed Bank, or otherwise arising in connection with the Failed
Bank's lending or loan purchase activities are specifically not assumed
by the Assuming Bank.

Id. at page 9 of the Agreement. (Emphasis added.)
Under the express terms of the P & A Agreement, JPMorgan did not assume
any liability for monetary claims arising out of WaMu's residential mortgage loans and

home equity lines of credit made prior to September 25, 2008.
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The P & A Agreement in this case has been addressed by the Federal Courts.
These courts have held that the FDIC retained liability for borrower claims relating to
the WaMu loans and lending activities. In denying a plaintiff's motion to substitute
JPMorgan as a party in a lawsuit originally brought against WaMu, the U.S. Court of
Appeals for the for the First Circuit held that the FDIC was the real party in interest:
When Washington Mutual failed, JP Morgan acquired many assets but its
agreement with the FDIC retains for the FDIC 'any liability associated with
borrower claims for payment or any liability to any borrower for monetary

relief, or that provide for any other form of relief to any borrower's." Thus,
the FDIC was and remains the appropriate party in interest.

Yeomalakis v. FDIC, 562 F.3d 56, 60 (1% Cir. 2009)
Accordingly, Plaintiffs' Fourth Claim for TILA Violations and Tenth Claim for

Fraud and Concealment are all barred by the Purchase and Assumption Agreement as to
JPMorgan because these three claims are based on WaMu's alleged conduct that occurred
prior to September 25, 2008. Thus, these claims, to the extent they are still viable,
perhaps may be brought against the FDIC-Receiver in regard to WaMu's alleged actions.
V. PLAINTIFF FAILS TO TO STATE A FIRST CLAIM FOR WRONGFUL

FORECLOSURE

Plaintiff's first claim is based on her allegation that JPMorgan "does not have

standing to enforce the[Promissory] Note because [JPMorgan is not the owner of the
[Promissory Note]." See FAC, 4 18. This contention, however, 1s contrary to
California Law. See Caravantes v. California Reconveyance Co., 2010 WL 4055560,
9 (S.D.Cal.,2010) ("Caravantes"), which holds:

California Commercial Code § 3301 provides that a “person entitled to
enforce” an instrument includes “the holder of the instrument” as well as
“a nonholder in possession of the instrument who has the rights of a
holder.” In California, the instrument most commonly used to secure a
promissory note given for a real property loan is a deed of trust, which
effectively gives the creditor a lien on the secured property to satisfy the
obligation under the note if it is not paid. Alliance Mortg. Co. v.
Rothwell, 10 Cal.4th 1226, 1235, 44 Cal.Rptr.2d 352, 900 P.2d 601
(Cal.1995). California law specifically authorizes the trustee, beneficiary,
or any of their authorized agents to record the notice of default or the
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notice of sale under a deed of trust. Cal. Civ.Code §§ 2924(a)(1),

2924b(b) (4). Accordingly, as a servicer of the subject loan in this case,
JPMorgan had the authority to record the Notice of Default and to

enforce the power of sale under the Deed of Trust. Accordingly, the

Court GRANTS the motion to dismiss in this regard and

DISMISSES WITH PREJUDICE Plaintiff's fifteen cause of action.

In this case, as in Caravantes, supra, JPMorgan obtained WaMu' servicing

interests in the Subject Loan pursuant to the P & A Agreement with the FDIC.
Accordingly, contrary to Plaintiff's allegations, JPMorgan and CRC have properly
initiated the foreclosure proceedings in regard to the Subject Property. This claims
should be dismissed.
VI. PLAINTIFF FAILS TO TO STATE A SECOND CLAIM FOR
VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE § 2923.5
Plaintiff's only claim that Defendants have violated the provisions of Civil Code

§ 2923.5 is that

Plaintiff is informed and believes that declarant Clement Durkin did not have
personal knowledge of the matters described in his declaration, which purported
to describe attempts by Chase to contact Plaintiff as required by § 2923.5. The
NOD must include a declaration from one of three entities showing it contacted
the borrower or tried with due diligence to contact the borrower.

FAC, § 22.
The California Court of Appeal has held that § 2923.5 doesn not require

the NOD to include a declaration under oath of perjury or that the declarant making
the declaration is required to have to have personal knowledge of each of the facts set
forth in the NOD regarding compliance with NOD. Specifically, the California Cour
of Appeal has held:

And, finally-back to our point about the inherent individual operation of
the statute-the very structure of subdivision (b) belies any insertion of a
penalty of perjury requirement. The way section 2923.5 is set up, too
many people are necessarily involved in the process for any one person to
likely be in the position where he or she could swear that all three
requirements of the declaration required by subdivision (b) were met. We
note, for example, that subdivision (a)(2) requires any one of three
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entities (a “mortgagee, beneficiary, or authorized agent”) to contact the
borrower, and such entities may employ different people for that purpose.
And the option under the statute of no contact being required (per
subdivision (h) "™™'*) further involves individuals who would, in any
commercial operation, probably be different from the people employed to
do the contacting. For example, the person who would know that the
“borrower had surrendered the keys would in all likelihood be a different

person than the legal officer who would know that the borrower had filed
for bankruptcy.

Mabry v. Superior Court, 185 Cal.App.4th 208, 233-234 (2010)

In light of the multiplicity of persons involved in the foreclosure process, the
Court of Appeal merely requires that the declaration in the NOD track the language of
§ 2923.5: ‘

In light of what we have just said about the multiplicity of persons who
would necessarily have to sign off on the precise category in subdivision
(b) of the statute that would apply in order to proceed with foreclosure
(contact by phone, contact in person, unsuccessful attempts at contact by
phone or in person, bankruptcy, borrower hiring a foreclosure consultant,
surrender of keys), and the possibility that such persons might be
employees of not less than three entities (mortgagee, beneficiary, or
authorized agent), there is no way we can divine an intention on the part
of the Legislature that each notice of foreclosure be custom drafted.

To which we add this important point: By construing the notice
requirement of section 2923.5, subdivision (b), to require only that the
notice track the language of the statute itself, we avoid the problem of the
imposition of costs beyond the minimum costs now required by our
reading of the statute.

Mabry, 185 Cal. App.4th 208 at 235

In this case, the language in the NOD does track § 2923.5 as required.
See Exhibit "4" to the FAC, where the Declaration of Compliance is attached.
For these reasons, this claim is without merit and should be dismissed.
VII. PLAINTIFF FAILS TO ALLEGE SUFFICIENT FACTS TO STATE A
THIRD CLAIM FOR UNJUST ENRICHMENT

Plaintiff's third cause of action fails because "unjust enrichment is not a cause

of action." Jogani v. Superior Court of Los Angeles County, 165 Cal. App. 4" 901,
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911(2008), citing Melchior v. New Line Productions, Inc., 106 Cal. App. 4" 779,793
(2003) ("[T]here is no cause of action in California for unjuSt enrichment."). "Unjust
enrichment is a general principle, underlying various legal doctrines and remedies,
rather than a remedy itself." Melchior, 206 Cal. App. 4™ at 793, citing Dinosaur
Development, Inc. v. White, 216 Cal. App. 3d 1310, 1315 (1989) (internal citations
omitted). Even if it were a cause of action, Plaintiff pleads no facts indicating that
JPMorgan's mere receipt of payments from Plaintiff on the Subject Loan - a debt she
voluntarily incurred — is somehow unjust. JPMorgan and CRC's motion to dismiss to
Plaintiff's third cause of action for unjust enrichment should, accordingly, be granted.
VIII. PLAINTIFF STILL FAILS TO TO STATE A FOURTH CLAIM FOR

RESPA AND TITLA VIOLATIONS

A.  Plaintiff's Claim for TILA Violaitons Fails Because She JPMorgan

Did Not Originate The Subject Loan and Because Any Claim Under
TILA Is Time-Barred
Plaintiffs's claims under TILA seek damages under TILA due to purported

violations of TILA. See FAC, q 31. However, JPMorgan did not originate the Subject
Loan, WaMu did. See FAC, 9 31. Consquently, JPMorgan should not have any
liability for WaMu's actions pursuant to Article 2.5 of the P & A Agrrement See

Cacres, which holds as follows:

In this case, the Office of Thrift Supervision closed WaMu on September
25, 2008 and appointed the FDIC as WaMu's receiver. On the same day,
JPMorgan acquired certain assets and liabilities of WaMu pursuant to a P
& A Agreement. See RIN, Ex. 4. Section 2.5 of the agreement provides:
“any liability associated with borrower claims ... related in any way to
any loan or commitment to lend made by the Failed Bank [WaMu] prior
to failure ... are specifically not assumed by the Assuming Bank.” N See
id. Accordingly, Section 2.5 establishes that JPMorgan has expressly not
assumed WaMu's liabilities relating to borrower claims. See Yeomalakis
v. FDIC, 562 F.3d 56, 62 (1st Cir.2009) (finding that Section 2.5 of
JPMorgan's agreement with the FDIC retained for the FDIC “any liability
associated with borrower claims™); Hilton v. Wash. Mut. Bank., 2009 WL
3485953, at *2 (N.D.Cal. October 28, 2009) (same); Cassese v. Wash.
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